
 

Meeting contact Ben Storey, Democratic & Member Services Officer on 01772 62 5563 or email 
ben.storey@chorley.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Governance Committee 
Thursday, 8th February 2024, 2.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Chorley and Youtube 
 
Agenda 
   
1 Apologies for Absence   
 

 
 
2 Declarations of Any Interests 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest 
in respect of matters contained in this agenda. 
 
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally 
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may 
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave 
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a 
decision on the matter. 
 

 

 
3 Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 17 January 2024 of Governance 

Committee 
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

 To agree the minutes of the last meeting, held on Wednesday 17 January 
2024, as an accurate record for signing by the Chair. 
 

 

 
4 Chorley Audit Findings Report 2022/23 
 

(Pages 9 - 60) 

 To receive and consider the report of the External Auditor, Grant Thornton. 
 

 
 
5 Auditor's Annual Report 2022/23 
 

(Pages 61 - 
106) 

 To receive and consider the report of the External Auditor, Grant Thornton. 
 

 
 
6 Statement of Accounts 2022/23 
 

(Pages 107 - 
112) 

 To receive and consider the report of the Director of Finance. 
 

 
 
7 RIPA Application Update 
 

 

 The Monitoring Officer will present a verbal report at the meeting. 
 

 
 
8 Work Programme 
 

(Pages 113 - 
114) 

 To receive and consider the work programme for the Committee. 
 

 
 

https://www.youtube.com/user/ChorleyCouncil


9 Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair   
 

 

 
Chris Sinnott  
Chief Executive 
 
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Governance Committee Councillor Alan Platt (Chair), 
Councillor Mark Clifford (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Gordon France, Christine Heydon, 
Samantha Martin, Dedrah Moss, Jean Sherwood and Neville Whitham.  
 
If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or 
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk 
 



Governance Committee Wednesday, 17 January 2024 

 
 
 
Minutes of Governance Committee 
 
Meeting date Wednesday, 17 January 2024 
 

Members present:  Councillor Alan Platt (Chair), Councillor Mark Clifford 
(Vice-Chair) and Councillors Gordon France, 
Christine Heydon, Samantha Martin, Dedrah Moss, 
Neville Whitham and Julia Berry 

 
Officers:  Dave Whelan (Head of Legal and Procurement), 

Dawn Highton (Head of Audit and Risk), Adam Nickson 
(Head of Property and Development), Hollie Walmsley 
(Head of HR), Ben Storey (Democratic and Member 
Services Officer) and Jacqui Murray (Senior Auditor)and 
attending virtually, Asim Khan (Director of Customer and 
Digital) 

 
Apologies:  Councillor Jean Sherwood, Charlotte Fitch (Independent 

Person) and Pete Ripley (Independent Person) 
 
Other Members:  Councillor Joan Williamson 
 

 
23.G.49 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jean Sherwood who was 
substituted by Councillor Julia Berry. 
  
Apologies for absence were also received from the Council’s two Independent 
Persons, Charlotte Fitch and Pete Ripley. 
 

23.G.50 Declarations of Any Interests 
 
No interests were declared. 
 

23.G.51 Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 29 November 2023 of Governance 
Committee 
 
Resolved: (Unanimously) 
  
That the minutes of the last meeting, held on Wednesday, 29 November 2023, were 
agreed as an accurate record for signing by the Chair, subject to a minor grammatical 
amendment in paragraph 23.G.44 which should read as ‘Following further debate, a 
working group derived from the Governance Committee was proposed to explore 
these issues in greater depth and determine how any documents are set out and 
published.’ 

Agenda Page 3 Agenda Item 3



Governance Committee Wednesday, 17 January 2024 

 
23.G.52 Annual Governance Statement Management Actions Update 

 
The Head of Audit and Risk presented this report which provided an update on agreed 
management actions in response to risks identified in the Annual Governance 
Statement. 
  
Members’ attention was drawn to three areas specifically that related to non-
implementation of agreed audit actions, the quality of the Council’s asset inventory 
and fully embedding risk management throughout the council. In addressing these 
actions, the Committee heard that progress had been made in achieving targets in 
completing agreed audit management actions through the use of the council’s risk 
management system, GRACE, and ongoing discussions and monitoring by directorate 
management teams. A significant piece of work had been undertaken over the last 
twelve months in logging inventories, utilising new systems to ensure that all the 
relevant processes were accurately followed, with a subsequent internal audit review 
completed to provide further assurances. The action concerning the updated Risk 
Management Strategy would be covered in greater detail in the later agenda item. 
  
The Annual Governance Statement that will be presented to Committee in May would 
include a final update on the management actions, in addition to any further areas 
identified and reported in that document. 
  
Responding to a number of questions, the Committee were advised that steps had 
been taken to better manage the council’s contracts, noting that a strengthened 
procurement team would soon be able to take a more proactive role in supporting 
teams in this area. Additionally, further clarification on processes around waiving of 
contract procedure rules was provided to members. Mandatory training was also 
highlighted within the report with improvements in completion rates of staff training 
across the organisation since the implementation of a rolling programme of online 
training now provided and regularly monitored. 
  
The Committee were informed that the deferred audit review into how the council 
manage any risks of fraud was anticipated to be completed by the end of March 2024. 
  
Reassurance was provided to Committee that no risks had been identified concerning 
procurement exercises that had been carried during the pandemic. 
  
Resolved – That the update be noted. 
 

23.G.53 Code of Conduct and Associated Social Media Protocol 
 
The Deputy Monitoring Officer presented this report which sought the Committee’s 
recommendation to Full Council for the approval of the Local Government Association 
Model Code of Conduct and also to agree the terms of reference for a working group 
to consider the associated Social Media Protocol. Both the Code of Conduct and the 
Social Media Protocol were debated at the last meeting and a decision deferred to 
undertake further work and consideration. The proposed Code of Conduct seeks to 
align Chorley with the county council and other town and parish councils in the local 
area, providing a consistent approach for any members who may be elected to more 
than one council. 
  

Agenda Page 4 Agenda Item 3



Governance Committee Wednesday, 17 January 2024 

Members were supportive of adopting the new Model Code of Conduct and 
recommending its adoption by Full Council. 
  
The Committee heard that there was a current protocol around social media use in 
place, and whilst it did also apply to members, it was noted that it was primarily 
directed towards council staff. 
  
Following discussion, the Committee agreed to establish a working group to review the 
Social Media Protocol with the following terms of reference as suggested within the 
report: 

a)    Authority to review other similar protocols 
b)    That the wording should be declarative – “I will” 
c)    That a comprehensive document would be preferable 
d)    That it include a ‘dos and don’ts’ section 
e)    That membership be drawn from the Governance Committee 

  
Members also requested the process of adopting the new protocol be expedited, with 
a hope that this could be completed prior to the elections in May of this year. 
  
Responding to a query about the complaints procedure and the benefits of a panel, 
and not just one senior officer, determining whether any complaints about councillors 
are escalated, the Committee were informed that the current procedure was 
comparable to most other local authorities with the Monitoring Officer ( or Deputy 
where appropriate) in consultation with one of the Council’s Independent Persons 
determining how best to handle any complaints received. 
  
Resolved: (Unanimously) 
That the Committee recommends to Council the approval and adoption of the 
Model Code of Conduct; and 
That the Committee agree the terms of reference for a working group to be 
established to consider an updated Social Media Protocol for Members. 
 

23.G.54 Internal Audit Progress Report 
 
The Senior Auditor presented this report which provided an update on the work 
undertaken and ongoing in respect of the Internal Audit Plan (September 2023 – 
December 2023) 
  
As outlined within the report, the Committees attention was drawn to the two reviews 
that had been given a ‘limited’ assurance rating, those being related to the physical 
security and environmental controls and also staff driving licence checks. It was noted 
that short deadlines for the completion of audit actions had been agreed to ensure 
areas of concern were addressed as soon as possible. The Director of Customer and 
Digital, the Head of HR and the Head of Property and Development were introduced to 
respond to any technical questions the Committee had. 
  
Regarding the performance of the audit team, the Committee were provided 
reassurance that they were on track to deliver the Internal Audit Plan and satisfaction 
survey results remain high. 
  
Questions were asked about the significant concerns around the security of the 
council’s ICT systems and sought assurances that actions would be completed by the 
agreed timescales. The seriousness of the issues highlighted within the report were 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 3



Governance Committee Wednesday, 17 January 2024 

acknowledged and in response, Members heard that progress had already been made 
in terms of sourcing specialist contractors to carry out the required work and was 
expected to be completed by the end of March 2024. Several aspects had already 
been actioned with regards to protocols around security alarms and building access. 
Clarification was provided with regards to fire suppression measures mentioned in the 
report, with additional staff training been arranged. Further work was also highlighted 
around CCTV which was underway following a new contract being agreed recently. 
Cost implications were being assessed as part of the project to complete the agreed 
audit actions with a further progress update at a future meeting welcomed by the 
Committee. Moving forward, a formal risk register was now in place which could be 
better monitored and managed, with risk management training undertaken with new 
starters and teams on an ongoing basis. 
  
Responding to a query whether heat and energy produced from server rooms could be 
harnessed for use around the building, the Committee were informed that the 
increased use of cloud based external servers had reduced the overall need for on site 
servers, and advancements in technology meant that servers were generally much 
more efficient in their energy consumption.  
  
Responding to queries raised regarding missed quality checks identified in the council 
tax review, it was noted that staffing changes and a period of transition as the two 
customer services teams became shared had been a factor but these checks had now 
been reintroduced. 
  
Members were reassured that no areas of concern had been raised by the checks of 
staff driving licences, however the review had triggered a review of wider issues to 
consider such as insurance with updates to policies being made where appropriate. 
On GDPR compliance it was noted that this was an ongoing process due to staff 
turnover with acknowledgement there may have been lapses, however improvements 
in this area had been demonstrated. 
  
Resolved: 
That the Committee note the current position with regard to the Internal Audit 
Plan. 
 

23.G.55 Risk Management Strategy 
 
The Head of Audit and Risk presented this report which sought the Committee’s 
approval of the revised Risk Management Strategy. 
  
Amendments to the document had been highlighted within the report with the key point 
being setting out the level of risk the Council is prepared to tolerate. Members were 
advised that any red residual risks that remained after directorate level review would 
now be escalated to the senior management team who would determine on a case-by-
case basis whether to implement further controls or tolerate the risk. If approved, the 
next steps were for the Head of Audit and Risk to meet with senior managers to review 
their reports so that they can be regularly monitored. 
  
Members were supportive of the proposed amendments to the Risk Management 
Strategy. 
  
Resolved (Unanimously) 
That the Committee approve the revised Risk Management Strategy. 

Agenda Page 6 Agenda Item 3



Governance Committee Wednesday, 17 January 2024 

 
23.G.56 RIPA Application Update 

 
The Deputy Monitoring Officer confirmed that no RIPA applications had been made 
since the last meeting of the Governance Committee. 
 

23.G.57 Work Programme 
 
The Committee noted the work programme for the remaining meetings of the 
2023/2024 municipal year, with the addition of an item at the March meeting which will 
consider the proposed new social media protocol that the working group will be 
reviewing. 
 

23.G.58 Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair 
 
Members were reminded of the additional meeting of the Governance Committee 
scheduled for 2.30pm Thursday 8 February 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date  
 

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



A
genda P

age 9
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

Georgia Jones

A
genda P

age 10
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 11
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 12
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 13
A

genda Item
 4

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/publication/2023/about-time-local-authority-reports.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 14
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 15
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 16
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 17
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 18
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 19
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 20
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 21
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•









A
genda P

age 22
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

Net pension surplus –

£9.898m •

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



















A
genda P

age 23
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 24
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•









A
genda P

age 25
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

   

   

Assessment

  






A
genda P

age 26
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 27
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 28
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 29
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

Specified procedures 

for Whole of 

Government 

Accounts A
genda P

age 30
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 31
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 32
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 33
A

genda Item
 4

https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf


Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 34
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 35
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 36
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

Appendices





 

 



















A
genda P

age 37
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

Management quality review of asset valuations and supporting documentation 

for key inputs

A
genda P

age 38
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

IT control environment

Minimum Revenue Provision

A
genda P

age 39
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

A
genda P

age 40
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 41
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 42
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

A
genda P

age 43
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 44
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 45
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 46
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 47
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

A
genda P

age 48
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

Chorley Borough Council

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements 

of Chorley Borough Council and its subsidiary undertaking, Chorley Leisure Ltd, for the year 

ended 31 March 2023 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the group and 

Council financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 and applicable law. 

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we 

considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the group and Council’s 

financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 

and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2022/23 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairly 

presented in accordance therewith.

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the group 

and Council and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in 

the financial statements.

iii. The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have 

a material effect on the group and Council financial statements in the event of non-

compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of any regulatory 

authorities that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event 

of non-compliance.

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance 

of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

v. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 

measured at fair value, are reasonable. Such accounting estimates include valuation 

of land and buildings, valuation of investment property and the valuation of the net 

pension surplus. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the 

preparation of the financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the 

Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. We understand our 

responsibilities includes identifying and considering alternative, methods, 

assumptions or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting 

framework, and why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the estimate used. 

We are satisfied that the methods, the data and the significant assumptions used by 

us in making accounting estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to 

achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance 

with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

vi. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 

valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits 

disclosures are consistent with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements and 

curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. We also confirm that all 

significant post-employment benefits have been identified and properly accounted 

for. 

vii. Except as disclosed in the group and Council financial statements:

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent

b. none of the assets of the [group and ]Council has been assigned, pledged or 

mortgaged

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-

recurring items requiring separate disclosure.

viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for 

and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial 

Reporting Standards and the Code.

ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which 

International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or 

disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

x. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and 

disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The group 

and Council financial statements have been amended for these misstatements, 

misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, 

including omissions.

A
genda P

age 49
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

xi. We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit 

Findings Report and attached. We have not adjusted the financial statements for 

these misstatements brought to our attention as they are immaterial to the results of 

the Council and its financial position at the year-end. The financial statements are 

free of material misstatements, including omissions.

xii. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in 

accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

xiii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 

classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

xiv. We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the 

group and Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern 

basis and have not identified any material uncertainties related to going concern on 

the grounds  that : 

a. the nature of the group and Council means that, notwithstanding any 

intention to cease the group and Council operations in their current form, it 

will continue to be appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting 

because, in such an event, services it performs can be expected to continue 

to be delivered by related public authorities and preparing the financial 

statements on a going concern basis will still provide a faithful representation 

of the items in the financial statements

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its financial 

statements on the basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and 

c. the group and Council’s system of internal control has not identified any 

events or conditions relevant to going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the group and Council's ability to 

continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements 

xv. The group and Council has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could 

have a material effect on the group and Council’s financial statements in the event of 

non-compliance.

xvi. We have considered the year end value of land and building assets which have not 

been subject to external valuation and we are satisfied that the basis of valuation 

remains appropriate and assets are not materially misstated. We have not identified 

any material changes to the properties. 

xviii. We have reviewed the status and related accounting requirements for Chorley 

Borough Council Property Ltd and are satisfied that group accounts are not required 

in relation to the company as it has returned dormant accounts to Companies House 

and no transactions have passed through the company. We confirm it is our 

understanding that although a lease was signed on 7 April 2021 between Chorley 

Borough Council and the Property company the lease dates were incorrect and the 

lease was not enacted. All transactions have continued to be between Chorley 

Borough Council and the leasee of Logistics House directly, rather than via the 

Property Company. 

Information Provided

xix. We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 

preparation of the group and Council’s financial statements such as records, 

documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of 

your audit; and

c. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements, from whom 

you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

xx. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which 

management is aware.

xxi. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 

the financial statements.

xxii. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 

statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

A
genda P

age 50
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

xxii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that 

we are aware of and that affects the group and Council, and involves:

a. management;

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 

statements.

xxiii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or 

suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, 

former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

xxiv. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-

compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when 

preparing financial statements.

xxv. We have disclosed to you the identity of the group and Council's related parties and 

all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

xxvi. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose 

effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's 

risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any 

significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the group and 

Council's financial and operating performance over the period covered by the financial 

statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Governance 

Committee at its meeting on 29 November 2023

A
genda P

age 51
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

Independent auditor's report to the members of Chorley Borough Council

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Chorley Borough Council (the ‘Authority’) 

and its subsidiary (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2023, which comprise the 

Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund 

Statement, the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash Flow 

Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 

preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Authority 

as at 31 March 2023 and of the group’s expenditure and income and the 

Authority’s expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) 

(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the 

Code of Audit Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. 

We are independent of the group and the Authority in accordance with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, 

including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Director of Finance’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the group and the Authority’s ability to continue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 

draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, 

if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Authority or the group to cease to 

continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Director of Finance’s conclusions, and in accordance with the 

expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 that the Authority’s and group’s financial 

statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent 

risks associated with the continuation of services provided by the group and the 

Authority. In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit 

of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom 

(Revised 2022) on the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector 

entities. We assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the 

group and Authority and the group and Authority’s disclosures over the going concern 

period.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Director of Finance’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 

statements is appropriate. 

A
genda P

age 52
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material 

uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast 

significant doubt on the Authority’s and the group’s ability to continue as a going 

concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are 

authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Director of Finance with respect to 

going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, 

other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director of 

Finance is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial 

statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 

the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we 

identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 

required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial 

statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 

there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 

fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of 

Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 

on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are 

required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with 

‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published 

by CIPFA and SOLACE, or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which 

we are aware from our audit. 

We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses 

all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial 

statements, the other information published together with the financial statements in 

the Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are 

prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of 

the audit; or

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 

contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 

in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority and the Director of Finance 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Authority is required to 

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure 

that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. 

A
genda P

age 53
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

In this authority, that officer is the Director of Finance. The Director of Finance is 

responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the 

financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

2022/23, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal 

control as the Director of Finance determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Finance is responsible for 

assessing the Authority’s and the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 

basis of accounting unless they have been informed by the relevant national body of 

the intention to dissolve the Authority and the group without the transfer of its services 

to another public sector entity.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. Irregularities, 

including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The extent 

to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is 

detailed below.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are 

applicable to the group and Authority and determined that the most significant which 

are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements are those related 

to the reporting frameworks (the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23, the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Local Government Act 2003).

We enquired of management and the Governance Committee, concerning the group 

and Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:

• the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

• the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

• the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-

compliance with laws and regulations.

We enquired of management, internal audit and the Governance Committee, whether 

they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or 

whether they had any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority and group’s financial statements to 

material misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating management’s 

incentives and opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included 

the evaluation of the risk of management override of controls. We determined that the 

principal risks were in relation to:

• journal entries that impacted income and expenditure or posted during 

the accounts production;

• potential management bias in accounting estimates; and

• transactions outside the normal course of business.

Our audit procedures involved:

• evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place 

to prevent and detect fraud,

• journal entry testing, with a focus on journals which impacted income and 

expenditure or posted during the accounts production,

• challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its 

significant accounting estimates in respect of valuation of land and buildings, the 

valuation of investment property and defined benefit pensions liability valuations, 

and

• assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as 

part of our procedures on the related financial statement item.

A
genda P

age 54
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the 

financial statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from 

error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than 

detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve collusion, deliberate 

concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-

compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the 

financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all 

engagement team members, including the potential for fraud in revenue and 

expenditure recognition, and the significant accounting estimates related to the 

valuation of land and buildings, the valuation of investment property and defined 

benefit pensions. We remained alert to any indications of non-compliance with laws 

and regulations, including fraud, throughout the audit.

Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities 

of the group and Authority’s engagement team included consideration of the 

engagement team's:

• understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar 

nature and complexity through appropriate training and participation

• knowledge of the local government sector in which the group and Authority 

operates

• understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority 

and group including:

o the provisions of the applicable legislation

o guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE

o the applicable statutory provisions.

In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an 

understanding of:

• the Authority and group’s operations, including the nature of its income and 

expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to understand 

the classes of transactions, account balances, expected financial statement 

disclosures and business risks that may result in risks of material misstatement.

• the Authority and group's control environment, including the policies and 

procedures implemented by the Authority and group to ensure compliance with 

the requirements of the financial reporting framework.

For components at which audit procedures were performed, we considered whether 

there were instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that gave rise to a 

risk of material misstatement of the group financial statements. No such matters were 

identified. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 

located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: 

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 

report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the Authority’s 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority’s 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we 

have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources for the year ended 31 March 2023.  

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matter except that on 30 January 

2024 we identified and reported significant weaknesses in the Authority’s 

arrangements for governance and for improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

We reported the significant weaknesses in our audit report for the year ended 31 

March 2022 issued on 07 September 2023. The significant weaknesses affect the 

Authority’s arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2023.  

This was in relation to:

the onboarding of contractors onto the Council network and providing system access. 

We recommend that due consideration be given to the extent of access required and 

risk management in relation to system access, including regular reviews of system 

access and documentation of that review.

A
genda P

age 55
A

genda Item
 4

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Commercial in confidence

• a failure of the Council’s governance framework. We recommend the Council 

considers what organisational architecture needs to be in place to ensure that 

the appropriate safeguards, checks and balances operate effectively to provide 

the assurance that officers acting improperly will be detected by Council 

systems.

• Non-compliance with the procurement procedures. We recommend the Council 

ensures that employees are aware of contract procedure rules and where there 

are invitations to tender/quote that all bidders have access to the same 

information with no bidder having an unfair advantage

• The lack of capacity of the current procurement function is putting the Council at 

significant risk of failure to achieve value for money in its procurement and 

contract management arrangements. We recommend that the Council renews 

and enhances the procurement strategy, prioritise the appropriate resourcing of 

its procurement function and appropriately those officers and set out clear 

responsibilities for procurement staff versus service line leads to ensure the 

procurement function operates in line with regulations and internal policy.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 

to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, 

nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 

effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard 

to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in January 2023. This 

guidance sets out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. 

When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to 

structure their commentary on arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to 

ensure it can continue to deliver its services; 

• Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and 

properly manages its risks; and 

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses 

information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and 

delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for 

each of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support 

our risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking 

our work, we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant 

weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Audit Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of South Ribble Borough Council for the 

year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance 

with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 

44 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that 

we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to 

them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 

law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and 

the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 

opinions we have formed.

A
genda P

age 56
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 57
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 58
A

genda Item
 4



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 59
A

genda Item
 4



A
genda P

age 60
A

genda Item
 4



A
genda P

age 61
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 62
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 63
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 64
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 65
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 66
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 67
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 68
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 69
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 70
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 71
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 72
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 73
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 74
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

The Council has established a partnership with South Ribble Borough Council through which it has a shared management team and a number of shared service arrangements. 

A
genda P

age 75
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 76
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 77
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 78
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 79
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 80
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 81
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 82
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 83
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 84
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 85
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 86
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 87
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 88
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 89
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 90
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 91
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 92
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 93
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 94
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 95
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 96
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 97
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 98
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 99
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 100
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

A
genda P

age 101
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 102
A

genda Item
 5



A
genda P

age 103
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 104
A

genda Item
 5



Commercial in confidence

A
genda P

age 105
A

genda Item
 5



A
genda P

age 106
A

genda Item
 5



  
 

 
Statement of Accounts 2022/23 
 
Is this report confidential? No  

 
 
Is this decision key? No 

 
 
Savings or expenditure amounting to 
greater than £100,000 

Significant impact on 2 or more council 
wards 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
 

1. Further to the approval of the Statement of Accounts for 2022/23 at the Governance 
Committee meeting on 29th November 2023, the purpose of the report is to update 
Committee Members on the adjustments made to the accounts since that date, following 
completion of the external audit by Grant Thornton. 
 

 
Recommendations  
 
2. Further to the approval of the Draft 2022/23 Statement of Accounts at the Governance 

Committee on 29th November 2023, the Committee is asked to approve the 
statements which have been amended during the completion of the external audit to 
include the adjustments detailed in point 12 below. 

 
Reasons for recommendations 

 
3. At the November Governance Committee meeting, the Committee approved the 

2022/23 Statement of Accounts, subject to any amendments which, in the opinion of 
the Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer), were minor in nature. 
 

4. Delegated authority was given to the Director of Finance, in consultation with the 
Chair of Governance Committee, to make such minor amendments, however if in the 
opinion of the Director of Finance any such amendments were found to be material 
to the financial position of the council, then Governance Committee would be asked 
to approve the updated Statement of Accounts 

 
Other options considered and rejected 
 

5. The Statement of Accounts are prepared in the form to meet professional accounting 
standards and to comply with statutory regulations. There are therefore no alternative 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director (Finance) Governance Committee 
 

Thursday, 8th 
January 2024 

Agenda Page 107 Agenda Item 6



options that can be adopted. The report complies with the recommendations approved 
by Governance Committee in November 2023. 

 
 
Corporate priorities 
 
6. The report relates to the following corporate priorities:  
 
Housing where residents can live well A green and sustainable borough 

An enterprising economy with vibrant 
local centres in urban and rural areas 

Healthy, safe and engaged communities 

 
Background to the report 
 
7. Once the external audit has been completed, the Regulations specify that the 

responsible Financial Officer must reconfirm on behalf of the authority that they are 
satisfied that the Statement of Accounts present a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the authority at the year end, and the income and expenditure for the year.  
 

8. The council is then required to:  
• consider, either by way of a Committee, or by the Members meeting as a whole, the 

Statement of Accounts;  
• approve the Statement of Accounts by a resolution of that Committee or meeting. 
 

9. Chorley Borough Council delegates the responsibility for the approval of the accounts 
to the Governance Committee. 
 

10. The Governance Committee approved the 2022/23 Statement of Accounts at their 
meeting on 29th November 2023 subject to any amendments arising from completion of 
the external audit which, if in the opinion of the Director of Finance were material to the 
financial position of the Council, the Governance Committee would be asked to approve 
the updated Statement of Accounts at a future meeting. 

 

11. As noted in Grant Thornton’s Audit Findings Report on the agenda, they have now 
completed their audit work. In doing so, since 29th November they have identified 5 
adjustments required to the accounts which they have discussed with the Director of 
Finance and her team; these amendments have been agreed and the 2022/23 
Statement of Accounts updated accordingly. 

 

12. The full list of adjustments identified by Grant Thornton to the Draft Statement of 
Accounts published on 7th August 2023 are set out below; these can also be found in 
Appendix D of their Audit Findings Report. 

 

Agenda Page 108 Agenda Item 6



 

 
13. In relation to each of the points above; 

 
• Misclassification of energy rebate payments: as the energy rebates were 

processed through the Council Tax system, at 31st March 2023 the balance was 
on a debtors code rather than a creditors code. Since the year end this has been 
corrected and the balance repaid over to central government. 
 

• Misclassification of short term borrowing as long term borrowing: this relates to 
two loans taken out by the Council which were under a year in duration and were 
therefore reclassified as short-term. 

 
• Misclassification of Council Tax Refunds at 31 March 2023: due to a technical 

issue, a number of refund payments issued to Council Tax payers were not 
recorded in the financial systems. This led to the balance due to Council Tax 
payers, and the bank balance, being overstated. 

 
• Pension surplus asset ceiling and recognition of unfunded liability:  accounting 

for pensions was unusual in 2022/23 due to there being a net surplus on the 
fund; this position was not unique to Chorley. The fund actuaries were requested 
to provide an IFRIC 14 assessment which considered the limit to be placed on 
this defined benefit asset. This was the approach taken by many local authorities 
across the country who found themselves in the same position. At the time of 
preparing the accounts it was uncertain how this surplus should be treated. 
Following the IFRIC 14 Assessment in November 2023, and on advice from the 
technical team at Grant Thornton, adjustments were identified and actioned in 
line with the advice received. 
 

• Asset register adjustments: Astley Hall was reclassified from being an Heritage 
Asset to an Operational Asset which resulted in a change in the method of 
valuation. The adjustment in relation to Tatton was affected by the impact of the 
a prior period adjustment to the opening balance which was impaired to reflect 
‘value in use’ rather than the ‘cost of construction’. The omitted land asset relates 
to land at Shady Lane which was removed from the asset register in error. 

 

Agenda Page 109 Agenda Item 6



14. In addition to the adjusted misstatements in the 2022/23 accounts noted above, during 
the audit it was identified that adjustment needed to be made to the opening balances 
brought forward from the 2021/22 accounts as follows: 
 

 
 

15. These adjustments relate to: 
 

• Impairment of asset under construction in relation to the Tatton development: see 
Paragraph 13 above. 
 

• Misclassification of revaluation movements between CIES and revaluation reserve: 
this relates to Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and the incorrect use of the 
revaluation reserve, rather than the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (CIES) following an adjustment to the council’s asset register. This has 
been reviewed and additional checks and balances put in place to ensure correct 
accounting for 2023/24 and beyond. 

 
 

16. Misclassification and disclosure changes have been made to the accounts as outlined 
in page 35 of Grant Thornton’s Audit Findings Report. 
 

17. Two adjustments identified by the auditors that have not been actioned as they are not 
material to the accounts are detailed in their report on page 36: 

 

 
18. Having considered the position, the council have decided not to adjust for these items 

as they are not material to the overall position of the accounts. The Provision for 
Business Rates appeals is reviewed annually and the provision for 2023/24 will be 
calculated using the methodology that resulted in the revised figure above. The 
misclassification of the technical overdraft has a net nil impact on the balance sheet and 
is a presentational issue. However as we strive for the Council’s Statement of Accounts 
to meet all standards, including best presentation we have noted this requirement for 

Agenda Page 110 Agenda Item 6



future years. These unadjusted misstatements will be referred to in the Letter of 
Representation to be signed by the Chair of the Governance Committee and the Director 
of Finance. 
 

19. The Annual Governance Statement is unchanged from that approved by the Committee 
on 24 May 2023. 

 

Climate change and air quality 
 
20. The work noted in this report does not impact the climate change and sustainability 

targets of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place. 
 
Equality and diversity 
 
21. This report has no implications in respect of equality and diversity.   
 
Risk 
 
22. Risk implications apply in relation to compliance with the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 (as amended) 2022, and in preparing financial statements in 
accordance with the statutory timetable. The accounts must be compliant with the 
relevant standards and must be prepared on a true and fair view basis. Failure to comply 
could result in a failure to meet the statutory duty. 

 
Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer 
 
23. The report meets the statutory accounting requirements for the Statement of Accounts 

to be produced, which must present a factual statement of the income and expenditure 
flows over the course of the 2022/23 financial year, and a snapshot of the Balance Sheet 
position as at 31st March 2023.  
 

24. All financial implications relating to the final budget outturn position have been set out in 
the Revenue and Capital Outturn Reports 2022/23, and which were considered by 
Cabinet on 15th June 2023. 

 
Comments of the Monitoring Officer 
 
25. The legal implications are in respect of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (as 

amended) 2022, and the requirement that the Accounts must be compliant with the 
relevant Accounting Standards and Codes of Practice and must be prepared on a true 
and fair view basis. Failure to comply could result in a failure to meet the statutory duty.  

 
Background documents  
 

• Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 (as amended) 2022  
• CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

2022/23. 
 
Report Author: Email: Telephone: Date: 

Jean Waddington (Principal 
Financial Accountant) 

jean.waddington@chorley.gov.uk 01257 
515151 

 

Agenda Page 111 Agenda Item 6



 

Agenda Page 112 Agenda Item 6



 

Governance Committee Work Programme 2023/24 
 

13 March 2024 
Report Officer 
Internal Audit Plan April 24 – Sept 24 Dawn Highton 
External Audit Progress Report  Grant Thornton 
Key Contracts and Partnerships 
Framework Refresh 

Caroline Wolfenden/ Caroline 
Winstanley 

  
 

Agenda Page 113 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 17 January 2024 of Governance Committee
	4 Chorley Audit Findings Report 2022/23
	Slide 1: The Audit Findings for Chorley Borough Council
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: 1. Headlines - CBC
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 1. Headlines
	Slide 6: 2. Financial Statements 
	Slide 7: 2. Financial Statements CBC
	Slide 8: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 9: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 10: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 11: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks - 
	Slide 12: 2. Financial Statements: new issues and risks
	Slide 13: 2. Financial Statements – Key findings arising from the group audit
	Slide 14: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 15: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 16: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 17: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 18: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 19: 2. Financial Statements:  other communication requirements
	Slide 20: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 21: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 22: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 23: 3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM)  
	Slide 24: 3. VFM: our procedures and conclusions 
	Slide 25: 4. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 26: 4. Independence and ethics
	Slide 27: 4. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 28
	Slide 29: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 30: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 31: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 32: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 33: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 34: D. Audit Adjustments 
	Slide 35: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 36: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 37: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 38: E. Fees and non-audit services - CBC
	Slide 39: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 40: F. Auditing developments
	Slide 41: G. Management Letter of Representation  
	Slide 42: G. Management Letter of Representation  
	Slide 43: G. Management Letter of Representation  
	Slide 44: H. Audit opinion  
	Slide 45: H. Audit opinion  
	Slide 46: H. Audit opinion  
	Slide 47: H. Audit opinion  
	Slide 48: H. Audit opinion  
	Slide 49: I. Audit letter in respect of delayed VFM work  
	Slide 50: J. IT Control Environment
	Slide 51: J. IT Control Environment
	Slide 52

	5 Auditor's Annual Report 2022/23
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Executive summary
	Slide 4: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 5: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 6: Use of auditor's powers
	Slide 7: Key recommendations
	Slide 8: Key recommendations
	Slide 9: Key recommendations
	Slide 10: Key recommendations
	Slide 11: Key recommendations
	Slide 12: Key recommendations
	Slide 13: Securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the Council’s use of resources
	Slide 14: The current LG landscape
	Slide 15: The current LG landscape (continued)
	Slide 16: Financial sustainability
	Slide 17: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 18: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 19: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 20: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 21: Financial governance
	Slide 22: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 23: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 24: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 25: Governance
	Slide 26: Governance (continued)
	Slide 27: Governance (continued)
	Slide 28: Governance (continued)
	Slide 29: Improving economy,  efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 30: Improving economy,  efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 31: Improving economy,  efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 32: Improving economy,  efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 33: Follow-up of previous recommendations Risk-based work: Internal audit review into Procurement in the Commercial Services Directorate
	Slide 34: Follow-up of previous recommendations Risk-based work: Internal audit review into Procurement in the Commercial Services Directorate
	Slide 35: Follow-up of previous recommendations Risk-based work: Internal audit review into Procurement in the Commercial Services Directorate
	Slide 36: Follow-up of previous recommendations Risk-based work: Internal audit review into Procurement in the Commercial Services Directorate
	Slide 37: Follow-up of previous recommendations Risk-based work: Internal audit review into Procurement in the Commercial Services Directorate
	Slide 38: Follow-up of previous recommendations Risk-based work: Internal audit review into Procurement in the Commercial Services Directorate
	Slide 39: Follow-up of previous recommendations Value for Money: Financial Sustainability 
	Slide 40: Opinion on the financial statements
	Slide 41: Opinion on the financial statements
	Slide 42: Other reporting requirements
	Slide 43
	Slide 44: Appendix A: Responsibilities of the Council
	Slide 45: Appendix B: An explanatory note on recommendations
	Slide 46

	6 Statement of Accounts 2022/23
	Statement of Accounts 2022/23
	Purpose of the Report
	Corporate priorities
	Background to the report
	Climate change and air quality
	Equality and diversity
	Risk
	Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
	Comments of the Monitoring Officer
	Background documents


	8 Work Programme
	Governance Committee Work Programme 2023/24
	13 March 2024



